
CITY OF RICHMOND HILL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 25, 2016 7 P.M.

MEETING MINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Billy Albritton, Tara Baraniak, Les Fussell, Triple Cooper,
Brad Brookshire

STAFF PRESENT:  Randy Dykes, Amanda Styer, Mark Long

CITY COUNCIL PRESENT:  None

GUESTS: Fred Canady, Kim Stefan, Juraj Hudacek, Mike Pinault, Bob Bennett,
Lance Cooper

Approval of the minutes of the meeting from January 11, 2016.

Commissioner Fussell made a motion to approve the minutes of the meeting of
January 11, 2016; motion seconded by Commissioner Baraniak and carried by all.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. A petition has been filed with the City of Richmond Hill by Fred Canady of
Canady’s Precision Air requesting a variance from Article VI, Section 9 (c) (2) b
and Table VI.1 of the Richmond Hill Sign Ordinance to allow for an increase in the
maximum allowable principal building sign square footage of 75 sq. ft. to 252 sq.
ft. for a single occupant building with an area less than 50,000 square feet. The
property is located at 504 Scott Court and is zoned C-4 Interchange Commercial.
Map 046 Parcel 001-01.

Assistant Director Randy Dykes explained this sign will be similar to what Canady’s has
in Pooler and they have also removed a billboard sign that was at this location.

Fred Canady explained they added an addition to the end of the building which faces I-
95 which had their building sign on it. He stated instead of using that sign again they
wish to replace it with a smaller, much nicer channel letter sign. He explained if he used
his previous sign it would be grandfathered in and since he is going with a new sign he
needs a variance.

Commissioner Fussell asked if the sign will go over the top of the building like the one in
Pooler and Mr. Canady replied no.



Page 2
PC MTG
1/25/16

Commissioner Brookshire asked if the new sign is smaller than the previous sign and
Mr. Canady replied yes.

Commissioner Cooper asked if the sign will be illuminated and Mr. Canady replied yes.

Assistant Director Dykes stated the neighboring property owner could not attend the
meeting, but did call Planning and Zoning in favor of the new sign and felt it would be an
improvement. 

Public Hearing closed at 7:11 p.m.

2. A petition has been filed by Mike Pinault of Pinault’s Defensive Solutions for a
text amendment to the zoning ordinance to add sporting goods store with gun
sales as a conditional use in a C-4 Interchange commercial zone in the Richmond
Hill Code of Ordinances. The address for the proposed text amendment is 3766
Hwy 17 Suite 103. Map 047 006 01.

Assistant Director Dykes explained this request is similar to Blankenship Sporting
Goods that was approved in the past. He stated this use is allowed in an I-1 and the
applicant is asking to add it to a C-4 also.

Mr. Pinault explained he would like to educate and train customers at this location. He
stated he is a fire arms instructor and would like to expand his business by having
classroom space, accessories and camping items also. He stated he would like to add
archery items in the future. 

Commissioner Baraniak asked if there will only be classroom style training and Mr.
Pinault replied yes classroom training with only plastic BB guns used at times. He stated
there will be no live fire at this location.

Bob Bennett came forward as owner of the shopping center that Mr. Pinault wishes to
locate his business. He stated he is supportive of Mr. Pinaults business and of the 2nd

Amendment. He explained he felt it was important for people to learn gun safety. 

Public Hearing closed at 7:16 p.m.



Page 3
PC MTG
1/25/16

PUBLIC HEARING RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. Approval/Disapproval of a petition filed by Fred Canady of Canady’s
Precision Air requesting a variance from Article VI, Section 9 (c) (2) b and Table
VI.1 of the Richmond Hill Sign Ordinance to allow for an increase in the maximum
allowable principal building sign square footage of 75 sq. ft. to 252 sq. ft. for a
single occupant building with an area less than 50,000 square feet. The property
is located at 504 Scott Court and is zoned C-4 Interchange Commercial. Map 046
Parcel 001-01.

Commissioner Brookshire made a motion to recommend approval of the request
by Fred Canady of Canady’s Precision Air for a variance from Article VI, Section 9
(c) (2) b and Table VI.1 of the Richmond Hill Sign Ordinance to allow for an
increase in the maximum allowable principal building sign square footage of 75
sq. ft. to 252 sq. ft. for a single occupant building with an area less than 50,000
square feet. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Cooper and carried by all.

2. Approval/Disapproval of a petition filed by Mike Pinault of Pinault’s Defensive
Solutions for a text amendment to the zoning ordinance to add sporting goods store
with gun sales as a conditional use in a C-4 Interchange commercial zone in the
Richmond Hill Code of Ordinances. The address for the proposed text amendment is
3766 Hwy 17 Suite 103. Map 047 006 01.

Commissioner Brookshire asked if we currently have this type of business in Richmond
Hill and Mr. Pinault replied that Richmond Hill Marine has a few similar items.

Assistant Director Dykes stated there are some home based gun sales businesses only.

Commissioner Cooper stated he appreciated that they will teach gun safety.

Mr. Pinault explained he will teach safety for first time gun handlers and also self
defense classes.

Commissioner Baraniak asked if nearby businesses were supportive and Mr. Bennett
replied yes all tenants at this location agreed this will be a good addition to the shopping
center.

Commissioner Cooper made a motion to recommend approval of the request by
Mike Pinault of Pinault’s Defensive Solutions for a text amendment to the zoning
ordinance to add sporting goods store with gun sales as a conditional use in a C-
4 Interchange commercial zone in the Richmond Hill Code of Ordinances. Motion
was seconded by Commissioner Fussell and carried by all.



Page 4
PC MTG
1/25/16

SITE PLAN REVIEW:

1. Approval/Disapproval of request by The Hutton Company for site plan approval
for a commercial building to be located at 9120 Ford Avenue. Map 0461 Parcel 
090.

Commissioner Fussell explained he liked the way the fence worked out and
Commissioner Brookshire liked the use of plants.

Commissioner Cooper asked if there was enough parking and Lance Cooper replied
that in order to meet the landscape requirements, they had to make a reduction on
parking. 

Commissioner Cooper asked if they definitely want three tenants in the building and Mr.
Cooper replied yes.

Assistant Director Dykes stated there are large utility easements that made it hard on
the applicant, but they have done a good job on the plan.

Commissioner Fussell asked if they will use pervious pavers and Mr. Cooper replied
they are considering using them in the back.

Chairman Albritton asked if the Starbucks located inside Kroger would be closing and
Mr. Cooper replied he is not sure, but he assumes it will stay open.

Commissioner Fussell made a motion to recommend approval of the request by
The Hutton Company for site plan approval for a commercial building to be
located at 9120 Ford Avenue; motion seconded by Commissioner Brookshire and
carried by all.

Meeting closed at 7:30 p.m.

Respectively submitted by,
Amanda Styer, Planning & Zoning Technician


